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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Within the period, Octobet 2004 to September 2005, the Commission has continued to
make progtress with the institutional strengthening measures it had initiated during the last
reporting period. It is in the process of finalising the Procedures Manual for the sector and
it has also begun to develop other types of guidelines for the public. It therefore intends to
continue those activities, and many of them ate expected to be completed, or at least be in

advanced stages, by the next Annual Report.

Within the sector there has been little growth in the number of telecommunications licences
that have been issued, and concetn has been expressed that the island’s fledging
telecommunications market might already be showing signs of stagnation. Notwithstanding,
the revenue collected as telecommunications licence fees and spectrum fees has increased
significantly (over 200%) since the last reporting period, but with the announced purchase of
Cingular Witeless’s Catibbean operations by Digicel, it is not yet known how this might be
affected.

The Commission approved the Price Cap Plan for Cable & Wireless (West Indies) Limited
in Saint Lucia, but its implementation had to be pushed back due to the late publication of
the Telecommunications (Retail Tariff) Regulations. The resulting delay may require the
approved Plan to be revisited, so that it reflects the actual citrcumstances around its

implementation and any accommodations that have had to be made in that regard.

There has been great focus on legislative reform by ECTEL. A number of new Regulations
have been proposed and some existing Regulations are being revised. As of the writing of
this report, ECTEL has forwarded its recommended drafts of the Dispute Resolution
Regulations and the Fees Regulations, for publication by its Member States. It is expected
that many of the other proposed Regulations shall be completed within 2006.

Finally, some of the new issues that will affect the sector and its regulation, especially in the
medium-to-long term, are discussed. They.include the implications of the proposed
purchase of Cingular Wireless’s Catibbean operations by Digicel, Voice over Internet
Protocol; the CARICOM Single Market and Economy, and the new Wotld—Bank™"
Telecommunications and ICT Development Project. For those issues and it is mentioned
throughout this report, there are requests for motre policy guidance, which would better
inform the Commission of the country’s position and imperatives, as they pertain to

telecommunications.
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1
NATIONAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS REGULATORY
COMMISSION

1.1 Constitution of the Commission

The constitution of the National Telecommunications Regulatory Commission has not

changed since the last reporting year. The Commissioners thus are:
Mzt. Eldon Mathurin (Chairman)
Mzt. Thaddeus Antoine
Mz. Victor Eudoxie
Mz. Victor Ellis
Mz. J. Wendell Skeete

It should be noted that the term of appointment for the Commissioners shall end on
October 21%, 2006. Thus, it is strongly recommended that atrangements to appoint
Commissioners ate made prior to that date, to facilitate a smooth transition to a new

constitution of the Commission.

1.2  Diary of Key Events

The period October 2004 to September 2005 has had some noteworthy events, some of
which will impact the telecommunications sector in Saint Lucia in the medium to long term.
Some of the highlights of the year are given below and a Diary of Key Events for the
petiod under review has been presented in Appendix A.

Approval of Price Cap Plan: Based on the Price Cap Implementation Agreement
between Cable & Wireless (West Indies) Limited, the Contracting States and ECTEL,
which was signed on July 30®, 2004, a Price Cap Plan was recommended to the
Commission for its approval. The recommendation was subject to public comment and
on November 16%, 2004, the Commission approved the Price Cap Plan for
implementation in Saint Lucia. ‘
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Memorandum of Understanding: This agreement was signed between ECTEL and the
NTRCs in the Contracting States for the management and use of the spectrum
monitoring equipment and the mobile monitoring station, all of which remain the
property of ECTEL.

Lettet of Commitment for Numbering Administration: In that agreement the

Commission agreed for ECTEL to act as its agent in interacting with external agencies to
ensure that all numbers assigned ate properly recorded and accessible by all

telecommunications providets wotldwide.

New Wotld Bank Project: The Contracting States for the initial OECS
Telecommunications Reform Project, have committed to a new Wotld Bank Project for

Telecommunications and ICT Development, which was approved on May 12" 2005, and
is expected to end on December 31%, 2009. A fuller discoutse on this activity is given in
Section 9.4.

Telecommunications (Retail Tariff) Regulations: The publication of these Regulations

was also a requirement of the above-mentioned Price Cap Implementation Agreement,
and is a pivotal element for the implementation of a price cap tegime, which would be
based on the Commission-approved Price Cap Plan.

Proposed Purchase of Cingular Wireless’s Caribbean Operations: The announcement

that Digicel intended to purchase Cingular Wireless’s Catibbean operations, which would
include mobile/cellular telecommunications licensee Witeless Ventures (St. Lucia)
Limited, essentially reduces the numbet of playets in the mobile/cellular market from

three to two, and may have long term implications for competition in that sectot.

1.2.1 ECTEL/NTRC Consultative Forum

The Consultative Forum has been organised pursuant to a decision of the ECTEL Boatd of

Directors, in which it was agreed that such a meeting would be held twice pet year. The
Forum would provide the NTRCs with an opportunity to meet to exchange views and
discuss the development of major documents that are being prepated by the ECTEL
Directorate. The two sessions for this 2005 were held in Saint Lucia on January 14%, 2005
and August 3 - 4% 2005.

1.2.2 Wotld Telecommunications Day Symposium

The Commission was represented at this Symposium, which was held from May 16" to 18%,
2005. It was hosted by the Catibbean Telecommunications Union (CTU), on the theme,

16
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Leveraging Information and Communications Technology for Global Competitive

Advantage, in recognition of Wotld Telecommunications Day, which focussed on Creating

an Equitable Information Society for Action. The Symposium was designed to be of

interest to government officials, public setvants, telecommunications regulators and

representatives from the ptivate sector, as reflected in the attached agenda. Consequently,

the interest in and relevance of the presentations would vary, depending on an attendee’s

area of work.

Although the general focus of the event was supposed to be on Information and

Communications Technology (ICT), three important messages emerged:

@

(i)

(ii)

Voice over Internet Protocol (VoIP) has not been given any serious attention
within the Caribbean, but its use and application ate expected to explode by
2006-2007. However, from the United States of America’s experience, there
ate no easy answets to issues and problems raised by VoIP, since legislators
never envisaged technology advancements that would completely throw off-

kilter the business and regulation of telecommunications.

Regulatory /cerminty is the key to fostering competition (which seemed to
endorse the efforts of the Commission to produce the Procedures Manual
and the Framework for Amateur Radio Operations). The statement also
suggests that regulators need to take consistent positions on issues, although
it is understood that they might need to revise an initial position at a future
date. However, it is believed that essential to achieving that state, regulators
must be well-prepared, instead of the usual practice of rushing to address

matters after they have become critical to the sector.

Finally, the applications of recent technological developments are still taking
shape and have not yet fully affected the industry. However, integral to
those applications reaching the consumers and also ICT development, is the
telecommunications platform. Although most of the infrastructute is owned
by the incumbent network operators, it was obsetved that there was an
assumption that the infrastructure was available, ready for use and could
satisfy the needs of emerging technologies and applications. No attention
was being paid to the continued maintenance and expansion of the
infrastructure, but there seemed to be an assumption that this would be

done.
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2
THE SECRETARIAT

The staff complement of the Secretariat has remained at five duting this reporting year. In
anticipation of the extensive technical work that the Commission is required to undertake,
concerted efforts were made to recruit a Technical Assistant, who would work with the
organisation’s Technical Officer.

2.1 Appointments

2.1.1 Position of Legal Officer/Secretary to the Commission -

The contract for the Legal Officet/Sectetaty to the Commission, Shana Willie, has been
extended by one additional yeat, and so shall end in August 2006.

2.1.2 Position of Technical Assistant

Effective from November 1%, 2005, Mt. E. Fabian Lewis will be appointed to the position of
Technical Assistant, and will have the following main duties:

(@) To schedule and undertake spectrum monitoring and management activities.

(b) To assist in the administration of numbers allocations and assignments in Saint
Lucia.

() To investigate, report and advise on complaints or conduct investigations concerning

allegations of breaches of the law, as it pettains to telecommunications.
(d) To conduct inspections to ensure compliance with prescribed technical standards.

() To prepare and submit regular reports to satisfy the advisory and investigative
functions associated with the position.

(f) To maintain and upkeep records atising out of the execution of the presctibed
duties, such as those related to specttum monitoting and management, numbering
allocations and assignments, and investigation of complaints.
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(8 To review technical issues associated with evaluations that the Commission is

required to conduct.

(b) To perform such other related duties as may be assigned from time to time.

2.2 Organisational Chart

The Organisational Chart for the Commission, Figure 2.1, has not changed since the last
repott, since all positions shall be filled for the first time in November 2005, when the
appointment of the Technical Assistant comes into effect. Moreover, the effectiveness of
those positions with respect to the functions of the Commission can only be successfully

assessed against the demands and needs of the sector, when all positions have been filled.

[ COMMISSIONERS ]

[ Cootdinator

Legal Officet/ Sectetary to
the Commission

1 |
[ Technical Officer ] [ Administrative Assistant J
| |_I§
[ Technical Assistant J Office/Information ﬁ
Clerk . Cleaner (part time) |

Figure 2.1: Otrganisational Chart of the National Telecommunications Regulatory

Commission

However, it should be noted that the needs and expertise required by the Commission is
increasing, as the sector continues to develop. Presently, although there might be
deficiencies in the expertise available to the Commission, the demand is not regular enough
to requite full-time appointments. Consequently, consideration shall soon need to be given
to establishing arrangements that would permit the Commission to have access to additional
and pertinent expertise on a timely basis, and whenever the need arises.
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2.3 Training & Professional Development

Within the reporting period efforts have been made to provide the staff of the Secretariat

with avenues for professional development in the areas presented below.

2.3.1 Records and Information Management

One of the primary objectives for the period under review was to improve the management
of information with the organisation. In an effott to achieve this outcome, the membership
was secured for the Administrative Assistant and Office/Information Clerk in the
International Association of Information Management (ARMA Intetnational), a not-for-
profit association and recognised authority on managing paper and electronic records and
information. ARMA International provides to access a wide range of resoutces, such as on-
line courses, seminars, periodicals, dealing with vatious developments in tecords and
information management, and their applicability to vatious types of organisations, including

administrative bodies like the Commission.

2.3.2 Spectrum Monitoring and Management

The Technical Officer to the Commission was accepted by the Unites States
Telecommunications Training Institute (USTTI) to participate in its Basic Spectrum
Monitoring and Assessment course (M5-106), which was held from April 12* to 18%, 2005,
in the United States of America. The coutse had a number of learning objectives, which

included, obtaining a working understanding of:

® spectrum management techniques related to enforcement of mnational and
international radio regulations, and apply them practically at a fully equipped

monitoring position;

e signal recognition, and how the signals are received through correlation between

available publications and obsetrved/measured signal charactetistics;

® how received signals are processed through receivers, monitors, oscilloscopes, DSP

techniques, and spectrum analyzets to establish transmission parameters;

® how special engineering measutement equipment is applied against microwave,
television, and satellite systems to understand the basis for their complex monitoring

results;
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e the complexities of modetn monitoring, measuring and direction finding.'

2.4 Proposed Move to Employment on a Permanent Basis and the
Establishment of Pensionable Positions

At present, all employees of the Commission are appointed on fixed term contracts.
Although this arrangement provides both employees and the Commission with some degree
of flexibility, it inherently engenders instability within the organisation, since appointments
ate (from the outset) for a fixed term. In the future, the Commission would like to more
fully establish its staffing, by being able to offer employment on a permanent basis in
pensionable positions. In that regard, and notwithstanding that contribution to the National
Insurance Corporation is mandatory, the Commission would like to establish its own

superannuation system.

The Commission is about to engage in preliminary discussions with the requisite agents and
authorities for guidance on setting up its own arrangements for superannuation. Although,
timelines cannot yet be furnished, it is hoped that the scheme should on its way to being
finalised by the end of 2006.

1 USTTI Course Listing, http://www.ustti.org
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3
UPDATE ON SYSTEMS & INSTITUTIONAL
STRENGTHENING MEASURES

Since the last reporting yeat, significant progress has been made to implement the systems
and to realise the institutional strengthening measures that were desctibed in the
Commission’s last teport. Of concern, however, is the area of policy development, which
still has not evolved sufficiently to address the issues of the sector, and to provide much
needed and timely guidance to the Commission.

3.1 Spectrum Monitoring and Management Systems (SMMS)

Since the last report, ECTEL and the Commission finalised and signed the Memorandum of
Understanding (MoU), in respect of the Spectrum Monitoring and Management System,
which although owned by ECTEL, is in the possession of and is expected to be used by the
Commission. In anticipation of taking possession of the Mobile Monitoring Station (MMS),

the Commission had a garage constructed to secure the vehicle.

The garage was completed in late August 2004, and with the expected appointment of a
Technical Assistant, who would be responsible for driving the MMS, arrangements shall be
made with ECTEL from transfer of the vehicle to the Commission. Itis thus expected, that
the Commission shall be in a position to actively begin comprehensive monitoring exercises

from the beginning of 2006.

3.2 Policies

Within the third quatter of 2005, the Minister with responsibilities for Telecommunications
sought to re-introduce regular meetings between the Ministry and the Commission. It is
likely that the first of those meetings shall occur within the last quarter of the calendar year.
Prior to that petiod, however, there had been minimal policy guidance, or regular and

structured discussions on the same.
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Howevet, duting the 2003-4 reporting year, the Commission sought to have the Ministry of
Communications, Wotks, Transport & Public Utilities consider transitional arrangements
that could be instituted to assist entities that had been licensed under the now repealed
Witeless Telegraphy Ordinance to meet the requitements of the Telecommunications Act
2000. In the absence of any clear direction from the Ministry, but noting the contribution
made by amateur radio operatots after the passage of Hurricane Ivan in September 2004,
which devastated Gtenada, the Commission sought a no-objection tesponse from the

Minister in respect of undertaking a re-licensing exercise for amateur radio operators.

The exercise was launched on October 23, 2004. It invited amateur radio operators who
had been licensed under the Witeless Ordinance to furnish their details, using the approved
application form and to provide documentary evidence of the operation of the station as a
licensed entity undet the Wireless Telegraphy Ordinance, Ch.146, which has since been
repealed. The exercise was initially had a deadline of February 28", 2005, but it was
extended to June 30®, 2005.

As of July 1%, 2005, amateur radio opetators wete requited to meet the full requirements of
the application process, namely completion of the application form in triplicate, payment of
the application fee of EC$25.00 and furnishing documentary evidence of the operation of
your amateur radio station as a licensed entity under the Wireless Telegraphy Ozrdinance,
Ch.146. A deadline date of December 30®, 2005 has been set for submission of applications
under those conditions. In the future, the Commission intends to no longer accept evidence
of having been licensed under the Wireless Telegraphy Ordinance, and applicants will be

requited to sit and pass the soon to be instituted amateur radio examinations.

In a similar regard, the Commission has launched re-licensing exetcises for other types of
telecommunications opetations, such as Citizen Band Radio, Land Mobile Radio, Maritime
Mobile Radio, with the intention of ensuring the that application, review and
recommendation processes have been satisfied. Mote details have been furnished in section
11.1.1.

3.3 Procedures

3.3.1 Sectot Procedutes

With reference to procedures, as last reported, the Commission has been prepating a
Procedures Manual, which it expects should provide some guidance to the sector, and which
it hopes would better inform interested parties of the practices that the Commission intends
to employ when addressing issues that are placed before it. The Procedures Manual has
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been divided into modules, which, for the most part, have been sttructured around the
existing Telecommunications Regulations. By selecting a modular format, it is expected that
revision of existing modules and the cteation of new modules, as the need atises, could be

more easily undertaken.

On July 12%, 2005, the Commission invited comment on the following eight (8) modules,
which were published as Consultation Document, LCD/JL05.004:

Module 1: General Information and Common Procedutres

Module 2: Consultations

Module 3: Application and Licensing Processes

Module 4: Intetconnection

Module 5: Terminal Equipment and Public Netwozrks

Module 6: Private Telecommunications Networks

Module 7: Fees

Module 8:  Spectrum Monitoring and Compliance Management

The closing date for comments was initially scheduled to for September 12, but due to
requests for an extension of time by ECTEL, the deadline date was pushed back to
September 30", 2005. Notwithstanding, the Commission intends to finalise the Manual and
make it publicly available before the end of the yeat.

3.3.2 Office/Internal Procedures

As indicated in the last repott, substantive work on documenting the internal procedures had
been deferred, pending completion of the Procedures Manual. With the Procedures Manual
in its final stages, work has resumed on the internal procedures, with the main areas of focus
being the technical and administrative sections of the sectetariat.

In many instances, internal procedures are required for activities associated with the day-to-
day running of the office of the Commission, as well as for providing the requisite support
that the Commission needs in order to meet its legal responsibilities as the regulator- of the

telecommunications sectot.
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3.4 Website Development

The creation of a new website for the Commission has been ongoing, and as last reported, it
is being done ptimatily in-house. Due to the evolution of the sector, detailed information
on sector issues, such as numbering, spectrum management, interconnection, equipment
type approval, and tatiffs and pricing, shall be presented. In addition, the website will
include information pertinent to consumers, including telecommunications rates, Frequently
Asked Questions (FAQs), the obligations of setvice providers and the responsibilities of

consumets.

3.5 Discussion Forum

Since the last report, ECTEL has ctreated a Discussion Forum on its website, which can be
accessed at http://www.ectelint/forum. The forum has been designed to permit public

discussion among its registered usets, as well as private discussions among the NTRCs or
between the NTRCs and ECTEL.

3.6 Links with Other Agencies

The Commission has actively undertaken to establish links with a number of agencies with
which there might be opportunities to collaborate. An update has been given in section
11.1.6.
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4
FINANCIAL REVIEW

The financial condition of the Commission for the petiod October 2004 to September 2005
shall be presented this section of the report. Fitst, an ovetview of the income inflows and
usage of the funds received by the Commission shall be given. Then, the Auditot’s Financial
Report is presented, followed by a general discussion on the expenditures, as recorded.
Although the Commission has been able to keep its expenses within the limits of the
disbursements made by ECTEL within the fiscal year, attention is drawn to the cap that has
been placed on the budget of the Commission for 2006/7 to 2007/8, which may cause the
organisation to be inadequately resourced for the responsibilities and tasks that it might be

required to undertake.

4.1 Income Inflows and Usage

As last reported, the Commission had requested supplementary funds for ECTEL to cover a
projected shortfall in funds of EC$ 97,750. In October 2004, ECTEL disbursed an
additional EC$ 50,000.00 to assist the Commission to cover that deficit. With the receipt of
those funds, the Commission was able to undertake construction of the garage to house the
MMS, which was urgently required. For the other deferred activities, such as the preparation
of an Office Procedures Manual, it was decided that it would be done in-house, and the
implementation of a Public Education Campaign would be channelled through ECTEL’s
Regional Public Education Initiative, which it had planned to undertake during the period

under review.

For the petiod October 1%, 2004 to September 30%, 2005, ECTEL disbutsed
EC$ 725,028.00 to meet the Commission’s projected budget of EC§ 725,690.00. Although
the projected amount is matginally different to that proposed for the 2003/4 fiscal year, the
following factors had to be considered in respect of the allocations made:

e Increases in remuneration to staff members and provision for gratuity for all

eligible staff members;

e More accurate projections of utilities expenses;
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e DProvision for legal fees associated with the appeal case against Cable & Wireless
(West Indies) Limited;

e DProvision for auto repait, fuel and maintenance of the MMS, when it is

transferred to the Commission.

Within the 2004/5 financial year, the Commission undertook construction of the garage for
the MMS, which had a cost of approximately EC$ 58,000.00, which covered planning and
engineéting fees and all of the construction works. Savings wete achieved in respect of legal
fees, due to the end of the litigation, and the provision for auto repair, fuel and maintenance
of MMS, since the vehicle was not transferred to the Commission during the period under
review. These monies were put towards completion of the garage, the purchase of new
treprographic equipment, and the putchase of propetty and equipment insurances for the

otganisation.

4.2  Financial Audit Report

The report of the independent auditors, G. Llewellyn Gill and Company, has been provided
as Appendix B to this Report. Figure 4.1 below presents a compatison of the disttibution of
the Commission’s expenditute for the fiscal petiods, October 2003 to September 2004, and
October 2004 to September 2005.
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Figure 2.1: Distribution of Expenditures for the Fiscal Years 2003/4 and 2004/5
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Generally it can be seen that there was very little percentage-change between the gtoups of
expenditure for the two fiscal years. However, due to the neatly 50% increase in the
Commission's budget for 2003 /4, there was an inctrease in the dollar value of some expenses.
For example, although the expenditure for the remuneration to staff and Commissioners
fees accounted for 72% in both years, that expense increased by EC$ 47,480.00 in 2004/5,
which has been attributed to the increase in remuneration to the staff of the Commission,
and most notably, the appointment of the Technical Officer.

Although utilities and rental charges increased drastically, from EC$ 70,281 at the end of the
2004 fiscal year to EC$ 103,935 in 2005, an increase of EC$ 33,654, it should be noted that
2004/5 would have been the first full year for which the Commission would have paid the
rent and utilities for its offices at Bois d’Orange.

4.3 Concerns on the Future Funding of the Commission

In October 2005, the ECTEL Directorate communicated that, due to the curtent levels at
which revenue from spectrum fees has been fixed, its Council of Ministers had placed a cap
on ECTEL’s contribution to the operating budgets of the NTRCs, which would remain
effective for the next two years, up to September 2008. Consequently, when the ECTEL
Directorate or an NTRC wishes to exceed a line item, a corresponding decrease in another

item must be proposed before approval can be granted.

Although the Commission appteciates the limitations in revenue from spectrum fees and the
rigour that ought to be present when budgets are being prepared and approved, it is
concerned that the proposed cap could be deleterious to the needs of the organisation and

by extension, the sectot.
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5
TELECOMMUNICATIONS LICENCES

As indicated in Section 3.2, the Commission initiated a re-licensing exercise for amateur
tradio operatots, which resulted in a number of positive recommendations being made to the
Minister, in addition to other positive recommendations that were made for successful
Individual and Class Licence applications. However, there has been only a marginal increase
in the number of telecommunications licences that have been issued since the last Annual
Report.

5.1 Licence Update

Within this reporting petiod, the Minister has granted two (2) telecommunications licences.

5.1.1 Licences Issued

Licence: The Landing of a Submarine Cable and the Establishment and Opetation of a
Submarine Cable Telecommunications Netwotrk and the Provision of Certain

Telecommunications Services
Licensee Date Issued

Antilles Crossing (St. Lucia) Limited February 2™, 2005

Licence: The Establishment and Opetation of a Private Telecommunications Network

Services
Licensee Date Issued
FINMAN Information Technology Unit September 227, 2004
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5.1.2 Licences Transferred ot Assigned

As of September 30%, 2005, no licences have been transferred or assigned.

5.1.3 Licences Modified
As of September 30%, 2005, no licences have been modified.

5.14 Licences Terminated

As of September 30®, 2005, no licences have been terminated

5.2 Review of Licensing Regime

As of September 30™, 2005, Saint Lucia has granted fourteen (14) telecommunications
licences, twelve of which have been for the provision of telecommunications setvices to the
public. However, of those twelve, only four businesses (and six (6) licences) can be

confirmed as being in operation.

These figures paint a sobeting image of the island’s telecommunications sector, and the
Commission is concetned that even before it has truly blossomed, the sectot is alteady
showing signs of contraction and more importantly, stagnation. Table 5.1 summarises by
year, the number of licence applications that the Commission received, the number of
applications for which positive recommendations wete submitted to the Minister, and the
number of licences that the Commission has on record as having been granted by the
Minister.

1 2005

.of Li Applicati
No c? icence App catfon.s 36 48 33 34 69
Received by the Commission

. of Applications Closed with
No.o. pplications o.se wit 2 12 16 18 4
Positive Recommendations
No. of Li G

(') .o icences Granted by 3 2 6 2 1

Minister

Table 5.1: Status of Applications Received and Processed through the Commission
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Although the table above includes both licences for the provision of telecommunications
services to the public and telecommunications opetations for the private use of the licensees,
the number of licences granted is still small. It suggests that either (i) the Ministry does not
efficiently process the recommendations teceived, and/or (i) that the Minister is not
prepated to grant licences to the applicants that have been positively recommended by
ECTEL and/or the Commission. In sum, it would appeatr that although Saint Lucia’s
telecommunications matket has been liberalised and permits open competition, there are still

battiets to the entities being licensed even when they have been successfully evaluated.

5.2.1 Proposed Symposium for Telecommunications Investors

In view of the Commission’s concern that the telecommunications matrket is not developing
as expected, and as a means of increasing local participation in the sector, in the third quarter
of 2005, the Commission embarked on preliminary discussions with the Saint Lucia National
Development Cotporation (NDC) to determine the possibility of the organisation co-
ordinating a symposium on telecommunications, which it was hoped could be held during
2006. The event would be organised to inform prospective investors on the industry, key
procedures and requitements, as well as to provide an opportunity for networking and

general discussion.

Although the NDC expressed interest in the proposed activity, it indicated that it has been
severely hampered by manpower limitations and so might not have enough resources to co-
ordinate and mobilise such an initiative. As of the end of this reporting period, the agreed
follow-up meetings have not yet taken place, and with the challenges facing that institution,
the proposed initiative might not be realised.
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6
TELECOMMUNICATIONS FEES

For the period, October 2004 to September 2005, the following fees wete collected by the
Government of Saint Lucia (GoSL) and by ECTEL.

Licence Fees (GoSL) EC$ 5,319,665
Specttum Fees (ECTEL) EC$ 3,397,800
TOTAL EC$ 8,717,465

6.1 Telecommunications Licence Fees

The telecommunications licences fees collected by the Inland Revenue Department have
increased over two-fold since the last tepotting petiod, from approximately EC§$ 1.5 million.
The soutce of this revenue has been ptrimatily from the four main telecommunications
operators, namely, Cable & Witeless (West Indies) Limited, Cable & Wireless Caribbean
Cellular (St. Lucia) Limited, Digicel St. Lucia Limited and Witeless Ventures (St. Lucia)
Limited, whose contribution is apptroximately 99.5% of the revenue received.

o

., | 2003/4 °, | 200478

i ¥ S
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Licence Fees (EC$) 1,549,825 | 5,319,665

Change - 1243%

Table 6.1: Compatison of Telecommuunciations Licence Fees Collected by the Inland
Revenue Department

It is important to note that several other entities have been licensed in Saint Lucia, and so are
required to pay telecommunications licence fees which, from the records supplied by the
Inland Revenue Department, have not been collected. There is thus a concern that the

Inland Revenue Department may not have made the requisite effort to collect from those
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licensees and has focussed almost exclusively on the main operators, for payment of

telecommunications licence fees.

In transferring the responsibility for the collection of telecommunications licence fees to the
Inland Revenue Department, an additional administrative body has been included to oversee
compliance with the terms of licences, as it pertains to fees. Non-payment of fees
constitutes a breach of a licence, which the Commission is responsible for overseeing.
When breaches have been identified, sanctions, such as suspension and revocation of the
licence, can be applied by the Minister, and these would usually be done upon the

recommendation of the Commission.

IRD )< — NTRC

Figure 6.1: Linkages between the Inland Revenue Depattment, the Ministty of
Communications, Works, Transport & Public Utilities and the Commission

As the agency responsible for the collection of telecommunications licence fees, it is
expected that the system and processes established by the Inland Revenue Department
should be able to have the following features:

e To accept and reflect multi-year payments of licence fees made in advance;
® To accept and reflect multiple one-off or short term payments of licence fees;

e To set up licensee accounts based on the anniversary date of a licence, as opposed to

the licensee’s fiscal yeat, or when payment of the initial licence fee is made?;

e To generate invoices based on the number and type of equipment that is being
utilised;?

2'The initial licence fee, which is stipulated for Individual and Type A Class Licences, is paid before the licence
is issued by the Minister.
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e To indicate or flag when fees are outstanding.

Although this is the second year since the Inland Revenue Department has collected
telecommunications licence fees, the Commission is concetned that the agency might not yet
be able to deal with all of the above requirements of the sector. Consequently, the
Commission’s ability to verify and ensure compliance of a critical condition of the licence is

severely hampered.

6.2 Frequency Authorisation (Spectrum) Fees

The amount collected as specttum fees in Saint Lucia increased by over 200% since the last
reporting year. Table 6.3 presents the fees collected for the periods 2003 to 2004 and 2004
to 2005.

T PR M&g\
\ 200’3%?

Spectru.m Fees (ECS{») 986,733 3,397,800

Change - 1 244%

Table 6.2: Comparison of Telecommunications Specttum Fees Collected by ECTEL

ECTEL collected EC$§ 10,669,513.00 in total as spectrum fees from its Member States, with
Saint Lucia conttibuting approximately 32% to that sum. It should, however, be noted, that
the spectrum fees collected by Saint Lucia includes amounts which had been billed during or
in relation to the previous financial year, and so might not be tepeated in subsequent

periods.

3 For Type B Class Licences in particular, the licence fee payable would be dependent on the number and types
of transceivets that a licensee possesses
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7
TARIFFS & PRICING

7.1  Price Cap Regime

Within the last reporting petiod and in keeping with the terms and conditions agreed to by
the signatories to the Price Cap Implementation Plan (PCIA)*, which was signed on Friday,
July 30%, 2004, a schedule was established for the completion of identified tasks so that a
ptice cap regime could be implemented for Cable & Wireless (West Indies) Limited. The
PCIA earmatked December 1%, 2004 for the implementation of the approved price cap plan,
but this date was subsequently pushed back to January 1%, 2005, since the parties had
undetestimated the time required to complete the prescribed tasks.

7.11 Publication of the Telecommunications (Retail Tariff) Regulations

The PCIA requited that two consultation exetcises be conducted. First, the Minister was
tequited to hold a consultation on the proposed Telecommunications (Retail Tariff)
Regulations, which would replace the Telecommunications (Tariff) Regulations 2002. That
consultation ran for the period August 14®, 2004 to September 30™, 2004. While the draft
Regulations might have been finalised soon after the consultation period, although not in
time to meet the initial October 8%, 2004 deadline, the Telecommunications (Retail Tanff)
Regulations were officially published on May 25% 2005.

The aim of the Telecommunications (Retail Tatiff) Regulations 2005 is to provide a more
comprehensive framework to support an incentive-based pricing mechanism on
telecommunications operatots for the provision of setvices, especially those setvices that
need to be regulated and have been designated as such. By its name, the Regulations focuses
on retail tariffs, that is the rates and prices aimed at consumers. However, there has been a
call for the preparation of wholesale tariff regulations, which will regulate the rates charged to
other service providets, such as those that might wish to be re-sellers of telecommunications

services.

4 The signatories to the PCIA were Cable & Wireless (West Indies) Limited, ECTEL and the ECTEL Member
States
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7.1.2 Approval of the Proposed Price Cap Plan

The second consultation was published by the Commission, in which it was required to
review and considetr the Recommendation of the [Eastern Caribbean
Telecommunications Authority (“ECTEL?”) to Approve or Disapprove a Price Cap
Plan for Cable & Wireless (West Indies) Limited (“C&W?”) in Saint Lucia,
[LCD/AU04.003]. The consultation was launched on August 4™ 2004, but both Cable &
Witeless (West Indies) Limited and ECTEL had requested an extension of time to respond
to the views received. Thus, the deadline date by which the Commission would be requited
to issue a decision either approving or disapproving the Price Cap Plan was pushed back to
November 16%, 2004.

In reviewing the comments received on the Consultation Document, and ECTEL’s and
Cable & Wireless (West Indies) Limited’s tesponse to those comments, the Commission
sought to determine whether or not there were any compelling reasons why the contents of
ECTEL’s recommendation of a Price Cap Plan for Cable & Wireless (West Indies) Limited
could not to be implemented as proposed.

In its deliberations, the Commission focused on assessing the metit of the comments made
on the Consultation Document and the responses provided by Cable & Witeless and
ECTEL. Specific attention was thus given to:

e identifying any significant issues raised by the respondents that might not have been
adequately addressed by ECTEL and/or by Cable & Witeless (West Indies) Limited,
and finally

e deciding, in the event that thete had been inadequate treatment of critical issues,
whether the citcumstances might be sufficient to persuade the Commission to not

approve the proposed Price Cap Plan.

The Commission’s treatment of the views submitted and its decisions as to whether or not
to approve or disapprove the proposed Price Cap Plan was published as a Determination
Notice [LDN/NO04.001] on November 16‘}‘, 2004.

In reaching its decision, the Commission noted that ECTEL’s recommendation of the Price
Cap Plan was as a result of negotiations between ECTEL and the incumbent operator Cable
& Witeless (West Indies) Limited, in otder to satisfy the requitement of implementing a
price cap regime, which was initially stipulated in the May 20", 2002 Agreement between
CWWTI and the Governments of the ECTEL Contracting States. It further noted that since
the proposed Price Cap Plan was a negotiated document produced under a constraining time
line, and the completion of which required compromise by both patties to the negotiations,
it was recognized that the utilization of such an approach would, in some instances, appear
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to be atbitrary. The Commission then proceeded to state some concetns that it had on the

proposed Plan, which included the
e The rationale for determining the productivity offsets (X factor) and initial rates,
e The basket chosen for Internet Setvices,
e The need for procedures to be developed to monitor the quality of service factor,
e The provisions for inclusion of new services into the Price Cap Plan, and

e The need for procedures for future Price Cap Regimes and tariff applications,

However, based on the methodology adopted for the Commission’s role in this consultation,
and through its deliberations on the submissions before it, the Commission was of the view
that the issues raised by the respondents had been adequately addressed by ECTEL and/ot
Cable & Witeless (West Indies) Limited. It thetefore approved the proposed Price Cap Plan
for Cable & Witeless (West Indies) Limited in Saint Lucia, as recommended by ECTEL.

7.1.3 Other Requitements for Implementation of the Price Cap Regime

With the approval of the proposed Price Cap Plan and the publication of the
Telecommunications (Retail Tariff) Regulations, Cable & Wireless (West Indies) Limited had
accepted that it was a major supplier, since it would be providing regulated setvices as listed in
the Price Cap Plan. Consequently, and in keeping with r. 6(6) of the Regulations, the
company would be requited to submit the initial rates for the telecommunications setvices
that would be regulated under the Price Cap Plan.

However, pursuant to the PCIA, ECTEL requested that the Commission grant an extension
of time to Cable & Wireless (West Indies) Limited until September 30%, 2005, in which to
file those initial rates. As of that date, which is the end of this reporting petiod, the filing
had not been submitted, but there was a subsequent request from ECTEL for the
Commission to grant a further extension to Cable & Wireless (West Indies) Limited to
supply the initial rates, until Friday, November 18, 2005.

7.1.4 Considerations on the Implementation of the Price Cap Regime

It was expected that the approved Price Cap Plan would be implemented from the revised
date of January 1%, 2006. However, with the delay in promulgation of the
Telecommunications (Retail Tariff) Regulations and Cable & Witeless (West Indies)
Limited’s submission of the initial rates for setvices to be regulated under Price Cap Plan,
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the mechanism has not yet been implemented, as of the end of this reporting period. Upon
teview of the approved Price Cap Plan, the document appeats dated in some respects and so
could be tevisited to clarify the state of the Plan, after almost a year’s delay in its

implementation.

Of significant note is the time frame of the Price Cap Plan. The document clearly states that
the approved version of the Plan would be in operation for four yeats, from December 17,
2004 to November 30", 2008. However, since the Plan has not yet been implemented, as of
September'SOﬂ‘, 2005, is it still expected to run for four years? Or will the November 30%
2008 deadline still hold, regardless of when the Plan is actually implemented?

Critical to the implementation of a Price Cap Regime is its time frame of operation, as it
seeks to drive a setvice provider to realise efficiencies, since it would be subject to price
regulation. Thus, if a relatively short petiod is selected, the matket may not significantly
benefit from efforts to regulate the prices of the service provider who would be subject to
that regime, and so would be to the advantage of the setvice provider. Alternatively, if the
petiod is relatively long, the setvice provider might be subject to onerous (and even unfair)
requitements, especially when the market bears no resemblance to the circumstances that

existed at the start point of the regime.

It should be noted that the Commission intends to communicate with ECTEL, as a
signatory and one of the atchitects of the PCIA, for guidance on the above issues, and the
way forward in respect of the Price Cap Plan.

7.2 Telecommunications Rates

The rates for telecommunications services in a liberalised telecommunications environment
can be a useful indication of the vibtancy and competitiveness of the sector. In the
following subsections, the current rates and pricing plans are presented and, when possible,
they are compared with those from eatlier periods. Generally, it should be observed that,
except for ADSL internet setvice, there has been little change in the rates since last reported,
even for mobile cellular telephone, which has had competition since 2003.

7.2.1 Fixed Line Telecommunications

The rates that are being paid for fixed line telecommunications services have changed since
the last reporting petiod. In January 2005, and in keeping with the initial rates and pricing
commitments approved in the Price Cap Plan, Cable & Witeless (West Indies) Limited
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reduced telephone rates for fixed line-to-fixed line and fixed line-to-mobile local calls.
Consumers also received 60 minutes per month of free fixed line-to-fixed line local calling
on during night and weekend calling periods. Tables 7.1 and 7.2 thus illustrate how the rates
have clt'langed since the May 20®, 2002 Agreement, for fixed line-to-fixed line local calls and

fixed line -to-mobile local calls, respectively.

Doume | che
]anuary 2005 0.07 0.05
April 2003 0.09 0.08 0.06
November 2002 0.08 0.07 0.05
May 2002 0.09 0.08 0.06

Table .1: Chatges for Fixed Line-to-Fixed Line Local Calls from May 2002 to Present

January 2005 0.76

April 2003 0.81 0.78
December 2002 0.68 0.65
November 2002 0.58 0.55
May 2002 0.81 0.79

Table 7.2: Chatges for Fixed Line-to-Mobile Local Calls from May 2002 to Present

7.2.2 |Mobile Cellular Telephony

Mobile/cellular telephony rates have not changed since Digicel St. Lucia Limited and
Wireless Ventures (St. Lucia) Limited launched of operation in 2003. Table 7.3 presents the

‘rates for pre-paid mobile/cellular service.

rnobile’ cellular service have been included as Appendix C.

The packages and rates available for post-paid

Outgomg M obJIe-to-M obzle of Same Opetator

e 3\3&,@9@,&15&@&\&

C&W Caribbean Cellular

0.70

0.55

Digicel

0.75

0.65
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Wireless Ventures
Outgoing Mobile-to-Fixed
C&W Caribbean Cellular 0.84 0.75 0.75
Digicel 0.85 0.80 0.75
Wireless Ventures 0.90 0.72 0.72
Outgoing Mobile-to-Mobile of Another Operator
C&W Caribbean Cellular 0.80 0.80 0.80
Digicel 0.85 0.80 0.75
Witeless Ventures 0.96 0.78 0.78

Table 7.3: Rates for Pre-Paid Mobile/Cellular Telecommunications Service

7.2.3 Internet Service

In respect of Intetnet Service, Cable & Wireless (West Indies) Limited is still the sole
provider of that setvice in Saint Lucia. In recent months the company has been promoting
its ADSL® Service. It has increased the upload speeds, introduced new packages, and has
reduced rates by up to 50% for some packages. ‘On the other hand, there have been no
changes in the rates ot speeds for the dial-up internet access. Table 7.4 shows the rates for
intetnet setvice packages that requite use of a dial-up modem. Table 7.5 compares old and
new ADSL packages, as of September 30®, 2005.

$ 4 OO pet addmonal hour
$ 3.00 per additional hour
$ 2.00 per additional hour
$ 1.50 per additional hour
X-Unlimited $ 129 Unlimited $ 0.75 log-on fee

5 ADSL — Asynchronous Digital Subsctiber Line
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Table 7.2: Compatison of ADSL Internet Setvice Packages

It should be noted that the XNet On Demand setvice is a market trial, which was launched
on August 29" 2005 and which is scheduled to end on November 29%, 2005. Unlike all
other ADSL setvice packages, which provide unlimited access for the listed monthly rate,
the monthly chatge for the XNet On Demand setvice covets internet access for twelve (12)
houts only. For each additional hour of use, a charge of EC$ 5.00 is levied.

7.3 Commission’s Appeal Case against Cable & Wireless
As last reported, the Commission had to decide, with the signing of the Price Cap

Implementation Agreement, whether or not there was a need to continue with its appeal
against the decision given in the case, Cable & Wireless (West Indies) Limited vs. National
Telecommunications Regulatory Commission (2003). After much deliberation, the Commission
took the position that it would no longer pursue the appeal, since the Agreement introduced
drastic changes to the regulation of tariffs and pricing and so made many of the arguments
for the appeal moot. In return, it was agreed that each party to the case would bear its own
costs in respect of the appeal.

6 Monthly rate is for 12 houts use.
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8
LEGISLATIVE REVIEW

Within this reporting year, ECTEL has begun to undertake an extensive review of the
legislation, for which there have alteady been a number of consultations. The focus has
been on Regulations, although it has been noted that the parent document, the
Telecommunications Act, also requites extensive teview and amendment. With the
exception of the Dispute Resolution'Regulations, versions of the other listed Regulations are
in opetation. Consequently, it is expected that the revised versions have addressed
deficiencies that have been identified in the current Regulations.

8.1 Dispute Resolution Regulations

The main putpose of the draft Telecommunications (Dispute Resolution) Regulations is to
provide a comprehensive procedute for resolving of disputes in the telecommunications
sector. The proposed Regulations would apply to all disputes concerning the provision of

telecommunications facilities and setvices, and would also include complaints initiated by —

(@ subscribets and othet members of the public against a telecommunications
provider,

) a licensee against another licensee,

(© parties using frequencies authorization, and

()] one contracting state against another.

The draft Regulations also provide a framework for the application of Alternative Dispute
Resolution (ADR) mechanisms, such as mediation, conciliation and atbitration. ADR
methods are being promoted wotldwide because they can avoid the delay, expense,
formalities and complexity of a tribunal hearing or coutt proceedings, and so could be to the
mutual benefit of all parties

ECTEL held a national consultation on the draft Regulations, in August 2004. From the
Commission’s recotds, the final draft of the Regulations as recommended by ECTEL was
forwarded to the Ministries with tesponsibility for Telecommunications in May 2005, for
publication in the national Gazettes.
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8.2 Fees Regulations

A revised version of the Telecommunications (Fees) Regulations has been prepared which
would integrate the Telecommunications (Fees) Regulations 2002 and the Telcommunications
(Frequency Fees) (Collection Mechanism) Regulations 2003. The revised Regulations sought also to
address the following shottcomings, ptimarily pettaining to the billing and collection of
spectrum fees:

() Thete was no established basis for billing of assigned frequencies, rather than

frequencies in use;

(i) The cutrent Regulations do not explicitly require fees to be paid upon the grant of all

frequencies;

(iii) Thete is no definition of ‘links’, notably microwave links, and determining when a
link has actually been established, which has had a deleterious effect on spectrum

revenue collection;
(iv) There is no standardised billing period.

The proposed Regulations were subjected to national consultation from October 12* 2004
to January 14® 2005. ‘The approved and recommended version from ECTEL was
forwarded to the Permanent Sectetatries in the Ministries of Telecommunications in July
2005, for onward transmission to Cabinet for its consideration and for the official
publication of new Telecommunications (Fees) Regulations. From the Commission’s
recotds, as of September 30", the new Regulations have not been published.

8.2.1 Unique Considerations for Saint Lucia on the Proposed Fees Regulations

ECTEL’s recommended vetsion of the Telecommunications (Fees) Regulations should be
considered a model document, which has been supplied to its Member States for
consideration and publication. In Saint Lucia’s case, the Regulations as drafted do not
include the unique circumstances that exist, specifically the collection of telecommunications
licence fees by the Inland Revenue Department, instead of the Commission, as obtains in
the other jurisdictions. Thus, the requisite amendments would need to be made, ptior to

publication.
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8.3 Licensing and Authorisation Regulations

ECTEL has been revising the Telecommunications (Licensing and Authotisation)
Regulations 2002, with the hope of addressing the following deficiencies:

¢ To more clearly describe Individual and Class Licences, and when Frequency
Authorisation would be required;

e To streamline the time frames for the application and licensing process;
¢ To establish procedutes for the transfer of licences;
e To establish procedutes for the enforcement of the licence;

e To more comprehensively revise the requisite application forms for the provision of
telecommunications service and/or the establishment of telecommunications

operations.

The proposed Regulations have, so far, been subjected to two sets of consultations that have
been limited to Attorney Generals’ Chambers, Ministries with responsibility for
Telecommunications and the N'TRCs, the last of which is scheduled to end on November
9* 2005. It is expected that soon thereafter, ECTEL shall request that a national
consultation be held, with the hope that its final recommendation to the Member States
could be furnished in 2006.

8.4 Spectrum Management Regulations

The key purpose of the revisions proposed for the Telecommunications (Spectrum
Management) Regulations 2002, has been to more consistently articulate the Commission’s
jurisdiction and responsibility for regulating spectrum management vis-a-vis that of ECTEL.
In most respects, the Commission would be explicitly required to inform ECTEL of
spectrum use, be advised by ECTEL, and importantly be seen to make its own decisions, as
might be necessary. In addition, the revisions elaborate on some of the areas of the existing
Regulations. For example, an attempt has been made to produce a more comprehensive

guidance for instances of harmful interference.

In similar regard as the draft Telecommunications (Licensing and Authorisation)
Regulations, the proposed Telecommunications (Spectrum Management) Regulations have,
so far, been subjected to two sets of consultations that have been limited to Attorney
Generals’ Chambers, Ministries with responsibility for Telecommunications and the NTRCs,
the last of which is scheduled to end on November 9%, 2005. It is expected that soon
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thereafter, ECTEL shall request that a national consultation be held, with the hope that its
final recommendation to the Member States could be furnished in 2006.

8.5  Other Proposed Regulations

In addition to the draft regulations described above, ECTEL has been working on other
legal instruments, which may not yet be advanced enough for national input. Within the next
calendar yeat, it is likely that those regulations, shall be receiving a great deal more attention,
and shall hopefully be finalised by the end of the 2005-2006 reporting period. '

8.5.1 Quality of Service

The telecommunications sector in Saint Lucia is in dite need of standards for the provision
of service: () from telecommunications service providers to consumers, and (i) between
service providers. Although most of the telecommunications licences that have been issued
so far have included quality of service parameters, it has been recognised that they ate

inadequate in terms of breadth and content.

In preparing regulations that address quality of setvice, it might be possible to establish 2
mote comprehensive set of factors and limits, to introduce more detailed mechanisms for
dealing with inadequate performance or breaches of those limits, as well as to regulatly revise

quality of service parameters.

8.5.2 Equipment Type Approval

Provisions pertaining to equipment type approval are contained in the Telecommunications
(Terminal Equipment and Public Network) Regulations, 2002. In addition to establishing a
process of granting equipment type approval, those regulations also very briefly prescribe the
need for technical standards, the registration of dealers and suppliets of terminal equipment

and the registration of persons undertaking the wiring of customer premises.

From early versions of the proposed regulations, it is likely that additional processes for
equipment compliance would be included, such as through declarations of conformity issued
by manufacturers. At this time, howevet, it is not known whethet the other above-stated
areas that are also part of the existing Telecommunications (Terminal Equipment and Public
Network) Regulations, will also be included in the updated Regulations. .
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8.5.3 Universal Service

Universal setvice is an important topic in the telecommunications sector, which has not yet
been substantively addressed in Saint Lucia. In its most basic form, Universal Service is
defined as ensuting that every individual within a country has basic telephone setrvice
available at an affordable price. However, the concept vaties, from country to country, from
having a telephone in every home and business, in the wealthier countries, to ensuring that
most inhabitants are within a certain distance or time away from a public telephone, in
developing countries’. FEach country must thus define Universal Setvice in terms of its
citcumstances and environment, and must develop the approptiate polices and framewozk to

realise the identified objectives.

Saint Lucia is a signatory to a new Wotld Bank Project on Telecommunications and ICT
Development, which has Universal Access as one of the four components that would be
addressed under that project. Universal Access is a detivative of Universal Service and the
terms are often used interchangeably. Notwithstanding, Universal Access generally refers to
a situation where every petson has a treasonable means of access to a publicly available
telephone, and/ot telecommunications setvices. The Project Information Document states
that the objective of the Universal Access component “.. #s 2o review current Universal Access
policy, create related guidelines and provide financial support to establish a Universal Access Fund”.

Creation of guidelines for Universal Access shall requite the drafting of Regulations.
Howevet, as eatlier stated, policy, particularly national policy, is required to inform any
future initiatives in that area.

7Wortld Trade Otzganisation’s definition for Universal Service,
http:/ /www.wto.org/english/tratop_e/serv_e/telecom_e/tell2_ehtm
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9
OTHER SECTOR ISSUES

Within the reporting petiod the issues discussed below have begun to gain prominence, and
potentially shall affect the telecommunications sector in the medium and long terms. Some
of these issues may also necessitate a review of telecommunications regulation in Saint Lucia,
due to the application of technology, and the shift towards regional integration becomes
mote established.

9.1 Proposed Purchase of Cingular Wireless’s Caribbean Operations
by Digicel

In June of this yeat, it was announced that the mobile telecommunications company, Digicel
Limited, which owns and opetrates Digicel St. Lucia Limited intended to putchase the
Caribbean operations of Cingular Wireless II, LL.C (“Cingular”), which owns and operates
Wireless Ventures (St. Lucia) Limited. In mid to late 2004, Cingular purchased the entire
operation of AT&T Witeless Setvices, which also included the local subsidiary, Witeless
Ventures (St. Lucia) Limited. The regulatory machinery was advised that Witeless Ventures
(St. Lucia) Limited would still remain the holder of the company’s telecommunications
licence, but it would trade under the name, Cingular Wireless. As a result, the Commission’s
records still reflect Witeless Ventutres (St. Lucia) Litnited as the registered licence holder, and

all formal communication to the company is still addressed as such.

Digicel Limited’s purchase of Cingular’s Caribbean operations, and the completion of the
Stock Purchase Agreement, was predicated on the company receiving regulatory consent, which
was given by the Minister in August/September 2005. As of September 30%, the purchase
had not been completed. However, in order to minimise possible distuption to consumers,
Digicel Limited and Cingular have entered into a Transition Setvices Agreement, in addition
to the Stock Purchase Agreement. Under that agreement, Cingular would continue to
provide certain setvices to Wireless Ventures (St. Lucia) Limited for a specific petiod of time
after the purchase has been completed, which would facilitate the seamless transfer of

service between the two operatots.
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9.1.1 Potential Implications of Putchase on Telecommunications Sector

The purchase of Cingular Wireless’s Caribbean holdings by Digicel, underlines the fact that
mergers and acquisitions ate a normal occuttence in the wotld of business, as companies
continually adjust to the demands of the matket and of competition. Presently, the
telecommunications legislation provides little guidance on how acquisitions and metgers
ought to be treated from a regulatory perspective, and due to the small matket and the
limited number of playets in Saint Lucia, the consequences of such normal activity can be

acute.

At this juncture, it has not been confirmed whether Digicel intends to keep the operations
Digicel St. Lucia Limited and Wireless Ventures (St. Lucia) Limited sepatate, ot to merge
them into one entity. However, due the obvious duplication of resoutces and the potential
for improved efficiency and petformance, thete is a distinct possibility that the two
companies might be merged into one operation. Notwithstanding, a review of some of the
regulatory issues has yielded the following thoughts on the possible implication of the

purchase.

Competition and Market Share: With the loss of a telecommunications network
operator, a duopoly would result in the mobile/cellular communications market,
where the most noticeable competiion existed. From previously published
assessments, the results strongly suggested that Cable & Wireless Caribbean Cellular
(St. Lucia) Limited and Digicel St. Lucia Limited had about equal market share, but
with the acquisition of Wireless Ventures (St. Lucia) Limited’s operations, Digicel St.
Lucia Limited is expected to have a much larger market share than the incumbent.

Licensing and Authorisation: Digicel St. Lucia Limited is already the holder of the
requisite telecommunications licence. Since Witeless Ventures (St. Lucia) Limited is
transferring its operations to an already licensed entity, the regulatory requitements in
that regard should be minimal and should be primatily administrative in nature.

Spectrum Allocation: Digicel St. Lucia Limited has been assigned frequencies for the
exclusive use with its operations, and in similar regard, the same was done for
Wireless Ventures (St. Lucia) Limited. If the operations are merged, it is likely that
spectrum shall be relinquished, which would permit more new entrants to the market
that could establish and offer mobile/cellular telecommunications services. On the
other hand, if Digicel intends to keep the operation separate, then the present
frequency assignments might not change significantly.

Interconnection: The agreement to maintain connectivity of Wireless Ventures (St.
Lucia) Limited netwotk may need to be revisited with the incumbent operator, since

eventually, that company would no longer be a telecommunications licensee.
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Numbering: Into the foreseeable future, the numbets groups assigned to Wireless
Ventures (St. Lucia) Limited can be assigned to the merged entity, since they are
already in use by the public. Consequently Digicel would have approximately
120,000 numbets available for use.

Revenue: The amount paid by mobile/cellular operators as telecommunications
licence fees is based on a petcentage of tevenue, and so is not directly dependent on
the number of licensees in the market. Consequently, there might be only a marginal
change in the tevenue to Government from those fees, as the remaining players in
the market should absotb the displaced consumets, which ought to result in

increased revenues for those operators.

On the other hand, the specttum fees that fund the regulatory machinery, namely,
ECTEL and the NTRCs in the five Member States, are likely to decrease should the
operations be merged and frequencies be relinquished to avoid duplication and to

increase efficiency.

Cell sites: In having access to a greater number of cell sites, it is possible that there
could be improved mobile/cellular coverage, notably in areas that might still be
undetserved. Further, in instances where there might be cell sites in close proximity
to each other and especially in high traffic areas, it might be possible to increase
capacity in those areas and so limit the number of dropped calls and increase
available frequencies (citcuits). Alternatively, mobile/cellular transceivers on towets
may be removed if not in use, but the sites might still remain, with opportunities for
lease, collocation or infrastructure sharing, if there are operators available to use the
facilities.

However, another possible and more attractive option exists: one of the wireless
networks could be used for the provision of another telecommunications service,
such as fixed public telecommunications and/ot intetnet setvice, and so introduce

competition in those markets.

In sum, although the consequences of the putrchase are yet to be experienced, it ought to be
appreciated that it has changed the complexion of the telecommunications sector in Saint
Lucia, in which there was only limited competition. Itis thus critical for efforts be made to
encourage investment in the telecommunications sectot, so that the island’s fledging industry
can limit the adverse effects of normal business transactions and to ensure that the perceived

benefits of competition are realised.
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9.2 Telecommunications Licences for Broadcast Networks & Services

In its interpretation section, the Telecommunications Act 2000 defines ‘broadcasting’ as
the “ransmission of radio or video programming to the public on a free, pay, subscription or other basis,
whether by cable television, terrestrial, or satellite means, or by other electronic delivery of such programming”.

13

In that same section, ‘telecommunications’has been defined as “.. any form of transmission,
ernission, or reception of signs, text, images and sounds or other intelligence of any nature by wire, radio,
optical or other electromagnetic means”. It was also specified in sub-section 6(1)(a) of the Act that
the Act would not apply to “the program content and scheduling, as opposed to the transmission aspects

of broadcasting networks and services”

Following the promulgation of the Telecommunications Act 2000, the position was taken by
Government that the licensing of broadcasting networks and setvices fell outside of that
Act. Such licences would remain the responsibility of other agencies, such as the Ministry
for Broadcasting, and the Telecommunications Act and its procedures would only apply
when use of the radio frequency specttum was requited to establish and operate
broadcasting networks.

However, with the technological convergence that has occurred in recent years, where
broadcasting networks and infrastructure, such as that used for cable television, can now
suppott the provision of telecommunications setvices, the initial position taken by policy
makers has had to be revisited. It was suggested that broadcasting should also fall under the
Telecommunications Act 2000, and so its networks and setvices would need to be licensed

under that legislation.

This revised position is in keeping with the proposal that has been made by the OECS Legal
Drafting Department, which reviewed broadcasting within the sub-region and has prepared
draft Broadcasting Bill. At consultations for this proposed piece of legislation, it was
suggested that, in addition to any licence or approval that might be granted for programme
content by the national broadcasting authority, a telecommunications licence would be

issued that would ovetsee all of the technical requitements of that netwotk and/or setvice.

Finally, it should be noted that ECTEL has citculated templates of the telecommunications
licence for broadcasting networks and services. However, the Commission requested
guidance on the following matters, which would facilitate the introduction of the suggested

arrangement:

e The requitements that ought to be satisfied by an entity who wishes to provide
broadcast setvices, and the procedural steps that would need to be satisfied.

o The roles of the ECTEL, the Ministty of Information, the Ministrty of
Communications, Works, Transport & Public Utilities, the Inland Revenue
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Department and the Commission, and the information that would need to be

exchanged by these agencies in order to manage those stated requitements.

e The application form(s) that would be used to secute a licence under the

Telecommunications Act.

e The procedures that have been established to facilitate the transition to this new (ot

proposed) arrangement. !

As of the writing of this repott, a response has not yet been furnished.

9.3 Voice over Internet Protocol

Voice over Internet Protocol (VoIP) has been one of the most prevalent terms in
telecommunications in recent times. The term refets to a technology that is used to transmit
voice conversations over a data netwotk, such as internal private networks, ot the Intetnet,

using the Internet Protocol®.

VoIP has begun to revolutionise telecommunications because it permits the existing
infrastructure to be used in innovative ways that introduce cost savings. More importantly, it
allows the newer telecommunications companies to setiously challenge the traditional voice
telephony providers, since setvices can be offered over the open internet. Hence, once
those businesses have arranged for access to the internet (or through their own ptivate
netwotks), they are able to offer voice setvice which directly competes with the more
established voice telephony services.

In Saint Lucia, access to and use of VoIP-based services is primarily consumer-driven.
Consumers use VoIP through the internet to make international calls, by subsctibing to
calling plans offered by a number of providers, none of which are licensed locally, such as
Net2Phone, Skype, Vonage and FlyFone. Notwithstanding the absence of status of those
telecommunications companies, they are providing the public with significant savings, which
could likely be to the detriment of the locally licensed network operators and service

providers.

In the short- to medium-term, it is expected that VoIP use for international voice calling
shall continue to tise and shall gain a significant share of that market. In that regard, there
are a number of regulatory issues that need to be addressed, which include the following:

8 Newton’s Telecoms Dictionary, 19% edition
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@ Determine whether mechanisms can be instituted to regulate businesses that
might not be registered in Saint Lucia, but which are offering
telecommunications setvices that have gained a sizeable market share and so

are competing with locally licensed opetatots;

(i) The implications for revenue reporting and licence fees, since the setvices
that use VoIP are considered to be non-geographic or nomadic — as they
enable end-users to make and receive calls from numerous locations, both
nationally and internationally. Moreovet, licensed providers shall likely
expetience decreased trevenues, which would in turn affect the

telecommunications licence fees remitted to Government;

@i  Determine what approptiate numbeting, if any, that should be allocated for

services deemed non-geographic or nomadic, such as those based on VoIP.

At present, the Commission is not aware of the existence of a national policy on VoIP. Itis,
however, hopeful that discussions will be held within the next year so that the island can

determine it position on this important and far-reaching subject.

9.4 The CARICOM Single Market and Economy

When the Treaty establishing the Caribbean Community, Chaguaramus, 1973, was revised in
1989, provisions were made to transform the then existing Common Market into a single
economy and market to facilitate competitive production of goods and setvices within the
Caribbean region. Through numerous revisions and the inclusion of additional Protocols,
the CARICOM Single Market and Economy (CSME) now has the following key elements:

e Free Movement of Goods and Setvices
e Right of Establishment
e A Common External Tariff
e Free Circulation
e Free Movement of Capital
e A Common Trade Policy
- Free Movement of Labour

e The Harmonisation of Certain Laws and Policies
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It has been reported that the CARICOM Member States, of which Saint Lucia is 2 member,
have set themselves the target of 2005 by which time all restrictions to trade should be
removed, theteby signalling the establishment of the Single Market and Economy as of
Januaty 1%, 2006.

9.4.1 The Potential Impact of CSME on the Telecommunications Regulation

It almost goes without saying that CSME shall affect the telecommunications sector, notably
the provision of setvice (free movement of services) and the availability of labour (free
movement of petsons). With regard to telecommunications regulation, a key concern is the
ptovision for ctoss botdet trade, which permits a business in one jurisdiction to provide

setvices in another, without the need to register the business in that territory.

In similar regard to some of the concetns raised for VoIP, there are questions on the degtee
of oversight the island’s regulatory machinery can provide; the controls that can be instituted

to, inter alia,
e manage the use of national resources, such as numbers and the frequency spectrum,
e establish and maintain quality of setvice to local consumers, and

e resolve disputes that may atise, such as between providers, or between a provider

and a consumet.

The above are only some of the issues that Saint Lucia ought to be prepared for, with the
establishment of CSME. However, it has been noted that there has been no discoutse, even
from a policy perspective, on the benefits, challenges and implications of CSME in the

telecommunications sector.

9.5 The Telecommunications and ICT Development Project

The OECS Telecommunications Reform Project, which was launched in October 1998, was the
starting point for the pro-competitive efforts within the Contracting States to liberalise
telecommunications, and shift from a monopoly to a liberalised environment. The initial
Project had two key components, namely, to modernise the regulatory framework for
telecommunications and to undertake a pilot project for Informatics training. However,
during a mid-term review, the Informatics component revised from being training-focussed

to policy development.
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With the end of the OECS Telkcommunications Reform Project in December 2004, the
Contracting States have established the Telecommunications and ICT Development Project with the
World Bank (Project ID: P088448), with the following components:

@

(i)

(1)

(%)

Legal and Regulatory Reforms: to strengthen the national and regional
regulatory frameworks and to promote additional competition in the

telecommunications sector.

Universal Setvice Fund: to review cutrent universal access policy, to cteate
related guidelines and to promote financial support to establish a Universal
Setvice Fund.

Information and Communications Technologies (ICT): to improve growth
and competitiveness in ICT-enabled setvices through utlisation of
broadband infrastructutre.

Project Management: to provide support to project management and
administration as well as funding for project audits’.

Once again, there will be counterpart funding by the Contracting States for this project. It
was approved for implementation on May 12%, 2005, and it is expected to end on December

31% 2009.

9 World Bank - Project Appraisal Document ... for a Telecommunications and ICT Development Project, Report No.

31395-LAC
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10
PLANS AND FRAMEWORKS

Building on the premise of the Procedures Manual: to provide much needed guidance to the
sector, attention is being given to the preparation of other guidelines for specific areas in
telecommunications. These documents ate being developed to either be ‘plans’ ot
‘frameworks’. Both sets of documents are in effect similar, but the prepatration of the plans
identified has been presctibed by legislation and it is likely to include rules for the futute

expansion of those areas.

10.1 Plans

ECTEL has been prepating two tegional plans for the telecommunications sectot, namely, a
Regional Numbering Plan and a Regional Spectrum Management Plan, which would
establish a basis for the harmonised development and management of those two ateas.
These plans have been mammoth undertakings. In each tertitory there are existing
structures that needed to be assessed and where necessaty, transitional arrangements have

had to be instituted to facilitate a uniform and consistent approach in all Member States.

10.1.1 Numbering Plan

The Regional Numbeting Plan, as developed by ECTEL, is a requitement of the ECTEL
Treaty, which stipulates that the organisation “... recommend a regional policy for the conduct of
telecommunications, in particular in relation to universal service, interconnection, numbering and pricing, and
to monitor its implementation in the Contracting States”. In eatlier versions of this Plan, it has been
stated that it shall contain:

e The background and rationale for the Numbering Plan;

e The Purpose and Objective of the Plan, including the assumptions, constraints and
context for the development of the Plan;

e The General Principles applied in the development of the Plan;
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e The International Linkages and inter-relationships between the various agencies in
number administration;

® The Processes and Procedures relevant to number resoutce management;

e The guidelines for the allocation, assignment and management of the Central Office
Codes (COC or NXX);

e The principles and procedures for the assighment and use of the short codes;
e The application of ENUM in the ECTEL Member States;
e DPrinciples for the operation of non-geographic codes in ECTEL Member states;

e All of the relevant forms and procedures for the management of the Numbering

Resource;

o A glossary of terms.

As of the writing of this report, ECTEL has held two (2) consultations on the Regional
Numbering Plan. Itis therefore expected that the document shall soon be finalised and shall
be made publicly available. Soon thereafter, also, it is expected that the NTRCs would be
requited to prepare National Numbering Plans for their respective jurisdictions, as informed
by the Regional Numbering Plan.

10.1.2 Specttum Plan

The pteparation and maintenance of a Regional Specttum Plan is also a stated function of
ECTEL. The Plan establishes a premise for advice and recommendations given by ECTEL
to its Member States on the allocation and use of the radio frequency spectrum “.. fo meet
the demands of existing and emerging technologies and services, thereby ensuring that the radio spectrum
provides the greatest economic and social benefit to the peoples of the region”. A Plan was completed in
2002, but it is being revised and is expected to include the following sections:

e A glossary of terms;

e A table of frequency allocations;

e  Guidelines for spectrum management in the ECTEL Member States;
e Frequency allocations for broadcast services;

e A policy on link length;

e A policy for unlicensed spectrum;
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e A channelisation plan;

¢  Guidelines for the frequency assighment process.

As of the writing of this report, ECTEL has held two (2) consultations on the Regional
Spectrum Plan, the most recent was in August 2005. It is expected that the document shall
be finalised in 2006. Soon thereafter, also, it is expected that the NTRCs would be requited
to prepate National Spectrum Plans for their tespective jurisdictions, which would be guided
by ECTEL’s regional plan.

10.2 Frameworks

Upon review of the telecommunications legislation, the Commission has been of the view
that, as presently drafted, the focus of the Act is on the provision of telecommunications
services to the general public. Consequently, the legislation provides limited guidance for
those who seek to utilise the telecommunications media for their own petsonal use and
enjoyment, or for those who intend to establish telecommunications networks for their own

opetations.

In an effort to provide much needed guidance to itself and to the public, the Commission is
in the process of drafting frameworks for the following types of telecommunications

operations:
e Amateur Radio;
e Citizen Band Radio ;
e Maritime Mobile Radio ;
e TLand Mobile Radio;
e Aeronautical Mobile Radio;
e Family Radio.

The objective of each framework would be to succinctly document the basic structure,
systems and processes pertinent to each type of telecommunications operations. FEach

framework is thus likely to address the following topics:
® Types of licences available and criteria for eligibility;

e Application process, licensing processes, reneéwal of licences, termination of

licences;
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e Approved frequency bands, modes of operation, power limits;
e Harmful interference;

e Call signs (where applicable);

e Basic operating rules and standards.

In some instances, it has been obsetved that in addition to the Commission, thete might be
other agencies that have some jutisdiction in respect of the above-named opetrations, such as
the Division of Maritime Affaits for maritime operations and communications. Hence,
when requited, the Commission has been engaging in discussions with those agencies to
determine whether or. not, and the extent to which, responsibilities might overlap; areas of
co-operation and collaboration; and what agreements and systems can be instituted to permit
all parties to fulfil their functions.

As of September 30", 2005, the Commission had launched a Public Consultation on its draft
Framework for Amateur Radio Operations in Saint Lucia on August 22™, 2005. The
closing date for comments is October 19%, and the Commission hopes to be in a position to
finalise this framework by the end of the calendar year. It has completed the draft
Framework for Citizen Band Radio Operations in Saint Lucia, which shall be the next
document put forward for consultation. Itis likely to be followed by a draft Framework for
Maritime Radio Operations in Saint Lucia, then Land Mobile Radio Operations, and
finally a draft Framework for Aeronautical Radio Operations in Saint Lucia.
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11
2005/6 WORK PROGRAMME

The Commission was able to successfully tackle many of the activities listed in its 2004/5
Work Plan Although many of the projects have not been fully completed within this
reporting period, most are expected to be finalised within 2006. However, it must be
recognised that the activities listed in the Wotk Plan are being undertaken in addition to the
regular, ongoing work of the organisation, and often requited the assistance of other
agencies, which might not have been as forthcoming as desited. Consequently, as the

circumstances and use of resources demand, those activities cannot be pursued exclusively.

11.1 Update on 2004/2005 Work Plan

For ease of reference, a copy of the 2004/5 Work Plan Schedule has been included as
Appendix D.

11.11 Licensing of Telecommunications Userts & Setvice Providers

As stated in the last report and in order to facilitate the licensing of telecommunications
users and service providers, the following draft templates of outstanding
telecommunications licences wete prepared in-house:

6] Aeronautical Mobile Radio Licence

(i)  Aircraft Station Licence

(iii)  Amateur Radio Operator Licence

(iv)  Citizen Band Radio Licence

™) Family Radio Licence

(vi)  Land Mobile Radio Licence

(vii) Maritime Mobile Radio Licence

(viii) Ship Station Licence
These documents wete forwarded to ECTEL on November 2™, 2004 for vetting, with the
hope that the Commission could be suitably prepared to embark upon the proposed re-
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licensing exetcise. In December 2004, ECTEL communicated that it would completely
tevise the licence templates and would furnish the Commission with those templates some
time in the New Year. However, as of the end of this reporting period, the draft licence
templates have not been supplied.

Notwithstanding, and based on the arrangements that had been instituted to begin the re-
licensing of amateur radio operators, as indicated in Section 3.2, in August 2005, the
Commission gave notice to the public that it was re-licensing the following types of

telecommunications operations:
e (Citizen Band Radio
e Aeronautical Mobile Radio
e TLand Mobile Radio
e Maritime Mobile Radio

For the above-stated operations, the Commission would tecognise entities that had been
licensed under the Wireless Telegraphy Otdinance (Ch. 146), but which has since been
repealed. Persons would be requited to furnish documentaty evidence, such as receipts

issued as proof of payment of licence fees, in order to have that status recognised.

In addition to the re-licensing exercises, the Commission has invited dealets and suppliets of
telecommunications terminal equipment to register with the Commission, in keeping with
Regulation 17 of the Telecommunications (Terminal Equipment and Public Network)
Regulations, 2002, which is specifically addressed to petsons who

(a)  ‘provide maintenance, repair services, reticulation and amy other related telecommunications

installation at customer premises, and/ or

(B6)  supply items of telecommunications terminal equipment, such as fax machines, PABXSs, modems
and telephone handsets.”

In all instances, the requisite application forms must be completed and must be submitted to
the Office of the Commission, Bois d’Orange. In respect of licence applications, the
Commission would process them and submit its recommendations to the Minister for his
decision. For applications to register as a dealer/supplier of telecommunications terminal
equipment, the Commission shall review those applications with the intention to publish a
Register of Dealers and Suppliets of Terminal Equipment, which would be a listing of
the entities recognised by the Commission to sell, maintain, repair and provide installation
services, in keeping with Regulation 17 of the Telecommunications (Terminal Equipment
and Public Network) Regulations. A deadline date of December 30™, 2005, has been set for
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receipt of all applications, failing which the Commission shall move more assuredly towards
ensuring compliance with the legislation.

11.1.2 Office Procedutres

The proposed approach for documenting of internal procedutes has been modified to better
utilise the first-hand knowledge and expertise that are available in-house. Motre importantly,
it was recognised that there are alteady existing procedures that are being used, which ought
to be given first consideration. The main ateas of focus for procedure development are
technical and administrative sections of the secretariat, which would use the Procedutes
Manual for the sector as a starting point for preparation. In that regard, the Procedures
Manual had to be in an advanced stage before work on the internal procedures could begin.

Efforts to prepare the internal procedures began in earnest in the third quarter of 2005. It
thus expected that there should be a full working document by March 2006.

11.1.3 Sector Procedures Manual

As last reported, the Commission was able to secure technical assistance from the Canadian
International Development Agency (CIDA) for the preparation of the Manual. However,
within the last quarter of 2004, the project ran out of funding, well before the draft Manual
could be finalised. The assigned consultant, Mt. Stuart MacPherson, most graciously gave of
the time and expertise (after the project had ended) to at least supply a useable document.
Wotk then continued in-house to complete the Manual.

On July 12%, 2005, eight (8) modules wete published as a Consultation Document,
LCD/JL05.004. A two-tieted consultation process was utilised, which was scheduled to last
84-days. However, due to requests for extensions in time, the Commission pushed back the
final deadline for comments from September 12% to September 30™, 2005.

Upon receipt of all comments, the Commission shall deliberate on the views shared and shall
determine how best the Procedures Manual could be improved by those comments. The
Manual shall then be revised to reflect those sentiments and soon thereafter, it shall be made
publicly available.

11.1.4 Public Education

The work on overhauling Commission’s website has not yet been completed. Most of the
work was being done in-house and due to the difficulties experienced to incotporate cettain
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features, expettise had to be sought in order to obtain the desited effect, which introduced
significant delays in completion of this project. Notwithstanding, it is expected that the new
website would be launched eatly in 2006.

Energies were also expended to develop a newsletter, which could have been published
separately but would be circulated as an insert in one of the national newspapers. However,
upon further consideration, it was deemed more prudent and cost-effective to seek to
establish a regular newspaper column. Hence, late in the third quatter of 2005, inquiries
were made to the newspapets to determine the possibility of such an initiative. Due to the
present commitment of the organisation, this publication is unlikely to begin before the New
Year, as a number of articles ought to be ptrepared in anticipation of the launch of the

column.

11.1.5 Amateur Radio Operations

As reported in eatlier chapters, the Commission launched a re-licensing exercise for existing
amateur radio operators on October 23 2004. The exetcise shall come to an end on
December 30%, 2005. Thereafter, the Commission shall not be recognising evidence that
persons had been previously licensed prior to the Telecommunications Act 2000, and shall

move more assuredly towards ensuring compliance with the legislation.

The proposed Framework for Amateur Radio Operations in Saint Lucia was completed
and was made publicly available for comment on August 22 2005. A two-tier Public
Consultation exetcise was employed, which was initially scheduled to end on October 317,
2005, but is likely to be delayed due to requests for extensions of time by amateur radio

operatots to submit comments.

Initial work has begun to establish a certification process for new amateur radio operators.
Those petsons would be requited to sit examinations to ascettain their skills and abilities for
specific classes of amateur radio operations. The syllabus is being prepared and it is likely
that it shall be completed by the fitst quatter of 2006, with the first set of examinations being
held within the second quarter.

11.1.6 Establishing Effective Liaisons

The Commission was successful in meeting with all of the agencies identified in its last
report, and also met with representatives the Attorney General’s Chambets, the Division of
Maritime Affairs, the Fisheries Depattment and the Director of Public Prosecutions’ Office.

In most instances, oppottunities for collaboration wete explored, and follow-up sessions
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have been scheduled in otdet to further possible arrangements between those entities and

the Commission.

11.1.7 Spectrum Monitoring

The spectrum monitoring exercise has not yet begun in earnest, a number of preliminary
arrangements wete outstanding, which were already discussed in Section 3.1. However, it is

expected that this exercise shall begin early in 2006.

11.1.8 Assessments & Surveys

The wotk on internal performance indicatots is ongoing and has not yet been finalised. It is
expected that the internal procedures that are being developed will highlight many important
indicators that ought to be included.

For the assessment of telecommunications licensees, it was decided that the exercise would
be conducted quartetly, and most of the results would be made publicly available. The
progtamme was launched in December 2004, but there wete significant delays in receiving
data from the target group, which in turn delayed each iteration of assessment. Moreovet,
licensees became concerned about the sensitivity of some of the information that would be
made public, especially for services where there was no competition and so the practice of
generalising the figures, either by presenting them in aggregate and/or percentages, could
not be utilised. It was thus agreed, that the approach might need to be revisited by all
parties.

11.2 Planned Activities

In light of the work that is still to be done on activities initiated in 2004/5, the Commission’s
focus shall be on completing those tasks. However, it shall include for action in its Work
Plan for 2005/6, standards development and the completion of the vatious frameworks
previously discussed. Also, it should be noted that some of the listed activities will become
‘ongoing activities’, once initial targets have been achieved, and will soon no longer be
included as ‘planned activities’ in the Work Plan, unless there are specific goals that have

been set.
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11.2.1 Standards Development

The telecommunications sector in Saint Lucia has been operating without the existence of its
own recognised standards. Fortunately, since most of the telecommunications equipment
and devices that are impotted are from recognised manufacturers, their quality is generally
good. However, since (i) the average consumetr can putchase his/her/its own
telecommunications devices, (i) equipment specifications are not uniform world wide, due
to the various standards that exist, and (iii) petsons are being encoutraged to enter the
matket, either to provide a telecommunications setvice or to offer much needed technical
support, there ought to be standards, which clearly state the requitements and limits for
identified equipment and services.

In the last quarter of 2004, the Commission, under the aegis of the Bureau of Standards,
convened a meeting to discuss the revitalisaion of the Buteau’s Telecommunications
Technical Committee (for standards development). The attendees, who included network
operators and service providets, took the position that they would prefer if work on

standards could be undertaken regionally.

Standards development was not featured in ECTEL’s 2004-5 Work Plan, and it is not yet
clear what attention it shall be given in 2005-6. It is therefore in this regard that the

Commission is prepared, once again, to institute its own efforts to address this matter.

11.2.2 Frameworks for Telecommunications Operations

Similar to the efforts that are in progress to finalise a Framework for Amateur Radio
Operations in Saint Lucia, and as already discussed in Section 10.2, it has been appreciated

that frameworks could be useful for the following telecommunications operations:
e Aecronautical Mobile Radio
e (Citizen Band Radio
e Family Radio
e Land Mobile Radio
e Maritime Mobile Radio

Most of those frameworks are already being prepared. However, once working documents
have been completed, the Commission shall make them publicly available for comment,
which although it is 2 necessaty element to foster transparency and permit public scrutiny,
does introduce delays to their finalisation.
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11.2.3 Measures to Improve Regulatory Certainty

This initiative was conceptualised after the World Telecommunications Day Symposium,

which was held in Trinidad from May 16™ to 18", 2005", and when consideration was given

to the following:

®

(i)

(ii)

(iv)

the existing efforts by the Commission to provide guidance to the sector through

the preparation of the Procedures Manual and the Frameworks;

when it was recognised that the Commission has had a number of expetiences,
which although would be reflected in its records, they would pethaps give a
disjointed view of the knowledge, methodology and reasoning that came to beat

on various topics;

that among the Commissioners and staff, there is a wealth of expertise that the

organisation utilises, but which might not be clearly documented;

that based on the fact that tutn-over is inherent in such as organisation (notably
among its Commissioners), it would be prudent to document what would be its
institutional memory, and so ensure that in so far as it is possible that

comprehensive references exists.

A number of topics have alteady been identified, many of which has been discussed in the
Annual Reports. They include, but are not limited to:

Intetconnection,
Price cap regime and other incentive-based pricing mechanisms,

Which telecommunications service can the Commission regulate?

- Convergence,

Customer Premises Wiring,
Equipment Type Approval and Standards Development, and

Caribbean Single Market & Economy.

10 See Sub-section 1.2.2
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11.3 Work Plan Schedule for 2005/2006

Presented below are the activities earmatked for action during the period October 2005 to

September 2006. For projects that ate being continued from 2004/5, an update has been

provided in section 11.1.

PROJECT & GENERAL TASKS

STATUS & COMMENTS

Licensing of Telecommunications Users
& Service Providers

e Establish linkages and procedures to
manage non-compliance to the Act

In progress

Linkages have been established. _Applications are
processed when recetved.

‘Office Procedures

e Internal procedures for administrative
section

e Internal procedutes for technical section

In progress

Work being done internally. On completion of
working document, the need jfor external assistance
will be assessed.

Sector Procedures Manual

In progress

Consultation has been completed. Manual needs to
be finalised and published

Public Education

o Overhaul website
e Identify and select other public
education medium, if necessary

e DPrepare material, if necessary

In progress

Website soon to be finalised.  Publication -of
newspaper column is being actively pursued.

Amateur Radio Operations

e Complete framework

o Establish certification scheme for
prospective amateut radio operators
e Licence new amateur radio operators

In progress

Framework to be finalised. Work bas begun on
certification scheme. Licensing of new amatenr radio
operators dependent on completion of certification
schemze.

Frameworks (new)

e Develop Frameworks for
o Citizen Band Radio
o0 Maritime Mobile Radio
o Land Mobile Radio
o Aeronautical Mobile Radio

In progress

Completion  of  maritime  and  aeronantical
Jramemworks might be dependent on co-gperation jfrom
agencies that might have responsibilities in those
areas.
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Spectrum Monitoring
e Start monitoring exetcise
e Revise database

e Determine and execute follow-up action
to be taken for identified breaches

To begin
Mobile Monitoring Station is now available for use.
Internal systems and procedures are being put in

place.

Assessments & Surveys

e Identify performance indicators for
licensees

e Identify performance indicators for
NTRC

e Identify performance indicators and
target groups among the public

e Implement approved assessment
PIOCCSSCS

To be reviewed

Must revisit the assessment parameters with the
telecommunications  service providers.  Internal
assessments can be implemented when a full working
document of the internal procedures has been
prepared.

Standards Development (new)

e Identify urgently needed standards
e Develop and establish system for
standards preparation and review

To begin
Progress might depend on whether ECTEL intends

to undertake this activity, in which case deference
would be given to regional initiative.
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12
FINAL REMARKS

The Commission has noted the expansion of setvices in areas like internet banking,
processing by the Customs & Excise Department, etc, and welcomes them. We look
forward to participating in the development of an envitonment in which the
telecommunications platform can be used even more extensively to promote our efficiency

and competition as a nation.

Our thanks go to the personnel of those agencies which have collaborated with our efforts
during the petiod and we look forward to intensifying these efforts as future circumstances
and challenges will no doubt require.

We also express our appreciation to our management and staff for their supetb effort and

unstinting support during the yeat.

68 NTRC Annnal Report, October 2004 — Septenber 2005



APPENDIX A:

Diary of Key Events

NTRC Annual Report, October 2004 — September 2005



8.3 Licensing and Authotisation Regulations....c.merireseusesssssenssmssersisnssssssssssssssssssisennens. 44

8.4 Specttum Management Regulations. ... eriecuseiserseseniisisnesssisisississississese e 44
8.5 Othet Proposed RegUIAtIONS . .....ocuemuerisrististesssssississssssstsisisss sttt sesseses s esesssssssssasinss 45
8.5.1  QUAlity Of SELVICE .....cuiurrirrrrricrntesseese b tes st isss s bes bbbt snens 45

8.5.2 Equipment Type APProval.... st 45

8.5.3  UnNIVErSal SEIVICE cuevururreeeeuccceetisietstessenase sttt ssssss s sssssssssssesssassssssssasasasseses 46

9 Other SECtOr ISSUES iievueirrrsirisrunresiieiiissieesiniessstetssneisssssesesssesssnsesssssseessasssssasasassas 47
9.1 Proposed Purchase of Cingular Wireless’s Caribbean Operations by Digicel............. 47
9.1.1 Potential Implications of Purchase on Telecommunications Sector.............. 48

9.2 Telecommunications Licences for Broadcast Networks & Setvices......ocvemveererereunnen. 50
9.3 Voice over Internet ProtoCoL......cuiiiiiiiininiciciicciini st eseaeas 51
9.4 The CARICOM Single Market and ECONOMY .....covurureeremreteeniiresieteeeeesesssessseses s 52
9.4.1 The Potential Impact of CSME on the Telecommunications Regulation..... 53

9.5 The Telecommunications and ICT Development Project ....cunrrirevcisnsnssrescessnsseens 53
10 Plans and FramewWoOrKS.....eeeeiiiiiiiieeiiceicniiniinnnnmniiteeieeiicesisssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssessens 55
10,1 PLANS e eutiieteetreririereeetrestestees s sss e st sesee st eeste st sseess st e e st e e s et e e ese st satas et s et et e et et et et ensesetesasn 55
10.1.1 NuMbeting Plan ...c.cusssisississsussnsesssssussusaussssissassnsesonssasessessissusssssssassasssssasasssnsiosnsss 55

10:1:2 Specttnimn PIan i iicsinnasssosiusissssisossssssiuseisnsasiasssnsesssscssissdsss ssssussssasssssnssa 56

10.2 FLameWOLKS ..cccvvueuccirncirecctee ettt ettt st e 57
11 2005/6 WOLk PLOZIAINIIIE «.ueervuereueresrersssecssncosseesssenssticssnsessesssssssssssssasessasssssessssssssses 59
11.1 Update on 2004/2005 WorLk Plam ......c.cccecurcurereecercmerrereeseesseecssaeesesesessesssssessessesssessens 59
11.1.1 Licensing of Telecommunications Users & Service Providets........ccoeurueeneee 59

11.1.2  OffiCe PLOCEAULES ..ceruerreerecereeneteeraeteseseeestesteteseesesssssseessssasssssssessessssassessessnnns 61

11.1.3 Sector Procedures Manual ........ccccerrnrmneninsssnsciniscscscsssessesessseeseesesassessnens 61

11.1.4 Public EauCAtion s ssssssinissssussssssesisasssbssses sttt sisssssiussmisisasass 61

11.1.5 Amateur Radio OPerations......ccoueererreecieennsrenssesnenssesssensseiessssssssessssssssssssssesses 62

11.1.6 Establishing Effective LiaiSOMnSs .....c.oieevereerreesininssessnsssesssssissensssssssssssssssssssesssses 62

11.1.7 Specttum MONItOHNE....cccvcuiririreiisrrsissisissasisssssssasss st sssesssssssassasans 63

NTRC Report, October 2004 — September 2005 vii



LR
by 78

o)




APPENDIX A

DIARY OF KEY EVENTS

.

September 22 Telecommunications licence issued to the FINMAN Information
Technology Unit for the Establishment and Operation of a Private
Telecommunications Network Services

October 23 Launch of Re-licensing of Amateur Radio Operators Exercise

October 26 Merger of AT&T Witeless Setvice (AWS) and Cingﬁlar in the

United States of America completed

November 15

Brand transition from AT&T Witeless to Cingular Witeless for Saint
Lucia operations. (Registered business and telecommunications
licensee remained as Wireless Ventures (St. Lucia) Limited.

November 16

Commission published a Determination Notice on the
Recommendation of the Eastern Caribbean Telecommunications Authority
(“ECTEL?”) to Approve or Disapprove a Price Cap plan for Cable &
Wireless (West Indies) Limited (“C&W™) in Saint Lucia, approving the
Price Cap Plan

November 26

NETEL officially launched service

December 31

OECS Telecommaunications Reform Prtyect (Project ID. P035730) closes

é};& ! i a‘ 5
z@g@ ﬁm@% . .

Cable & Witeless (\W est Indies) Limited announced reduction in

rates for fixed-to-fixed and fixed-to-mobile calls, and the
introduction of 60 free minutes of calls on evenings and weekends,
effective from January 1%, 2005

January 14

First ECTEL/NTRC Consultative Forum, Saint Lucia
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January 21 Notice of Application to withdraw the appeal case between the
National Telecommunications Regulatory Commission and Cable &
Witeless (West Indies) Limited filed with the Eastern Caribbean

Supreme Court.

January 24 Variation Agreement between Wireless Ventures (St. Lucia) Limited
and Cable & Witeless (West Indies) Limited for Fixed to Mobile

Termination Rate/Incoming International

February 2 Telecommunications licence issued to Antilles Crossing (St. Lucia)
Limited, for the Landing of a Submarine Cable and the Establishment and
Operation of a Submarine Cable Telecommnnications Network and the

Provision of Certain Telecommmunications Services,

April 15 ECTEL-hosted forum on the Findings of the Universal Access Study

April 18 — 22 USTTI Ttraining Coutse, M5-106 on Radio Spectrum Monitoring and
Measuring, Maryland U.S.A.

April 18 Signing of Memorandum of Understanding between Eastern Caribbean
Telecommnnications Anthority and National Telecommunications Regulatory

Commission (Saint Lucia) on the Management of the Spectrum Management

and Monttoring System

May 10 Letter of Commitment for Numbering Administration signed by
ECTEL and the Commission.

May 12 Telecommunications and ICT Development Project (Project ID. P088448)
gets World Bank approval

May 17 - 18 Caribbean Telecommunications Union (CTU) World

Telecommunications Day Symposium, Trinidad

May 19 Signing of Commitment Letter between ECTEL and the
Commission on the Administration of Numbets

May 23 Telecommunications (Retail Tariff) Regulations, No. 69 of 2005
published. (Telecommunications (Tariff) Regulations, No. 16 of
2002 repealed).
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July 12 Public Consultation on Procedutres Manual [LCD/JL05.004]
launched

July 1 Formal notification of the sale of Cingular Witeless’s Caribbean
operations to Digicel

August 4 —5 Second ECTEL/NTRC Consultative Forum, Saint Lucia

August 5 ECTEL recognises its fifth anniversary

August 5 Launch of Re-licensing exetcise for Citizen Band Radio,
Aeronautical Mobile Radio, Land Mobile Radio and Maritime
Mobile Radio

August 9 Public Consultation on draft Framework for Amateur Radio
Operations in Saint Lucia [LCD/AUO05.005] launched

September 7 Meeting with amateur radio operators to discuss the consultation

document, Framework for Amateur Radio Operations in Saint
Lucia [LCD/AU05.005]
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Chartered Accountants
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Sans Soucis Fax: 758-451-9324
F. 0. Box 546, E-Mail-gilll@candw.lc
Castries,
Saint Lucia.

AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Commissioners of:
THE NATIONAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS REGULATORY COMMISSION

We have audited the balance sheet of THE NATIONAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS
REGULATORY COMMISSION as at September 30, 2005 and the statements of changes in funds,
support and expenditure and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Commission's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Commission as at September 30, 2005 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Castries, St Lucia {\ ’L,M

December 30, 2005 Chartered Accountants

Building Business Value
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THE NATIONAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS REGULATORY COMMISSION
BALANCE SHEET

AS AT SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

ASSETS
2005 2004
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ 338,185 151,015
Prepaid expenses 11,379 9.000
349,564 160,015
CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 2) 124,918 56.724
$__ 474,482 $_216.739
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Bank overdraft $ - $ 28495
Licence fees payable (Note 3) 23,980 22,505
Accounts payable 47,560 18,562
Gratuity payable 57.243 30.785
128,783 100.347
FUNDS
CONTRIBUTED FUNDS (Note 4) 4,332 6,499
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS 341,367 109.893
345,699 116,392
$__474.482 $__216.739

) &
vf& ”%4,/;44,47 . ,2006

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these statements.



THE NATIONAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS REGULATORY COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FUNDS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

Contributed Accumulated Total
Funds Surplus
Balance at beginning of year $ 8,666 $ 66,332 $ 74,998
Amortization of Contributed Funds (2,167) 2,167 -
Excess Support over Expenditure - 41.394 41,394
Balance at September 30, 2004 $ 6.499 $_109.893 $_116,392
Balance at beginning of year $ 6,499 $ 109,893 $ 116,392
Amortization of Contributed Funds 2,167) 2,167 -
Excess Support over Expenditure - 229,307 229,307
Balance at September 30, 2005 S 4,332 $__341,367 $__345,699

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these statements.



THE NATIONAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS REGULATORY COMMISSION

STATEMENT OF SUPPORT AND EXPENDITURE

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

SUPPORT

Contributions from ECTEL
Application fees
Other

EXPENDITURE

Advertising and promotion
Audit

Bank charges and interest
Commissioner's fees
Depreciation

Gratuity

Insurance

Legal and professional fees
Membership and subscriptions
Office expenses

Relocation expenses

Rent

Repairs and maintenance
Salaries and wages

Supplies

Training

Travelling and entertainment
Utilities

EXCESS OF SUPPORT OVER EXPENDITURE for the year

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these statements.

2005

$ 775,028
26,590

7,208

808.826

365
5,000
157
91,200
14,158
54,957
3,654
2,000
1,728
13,729

54,000
8,577
271,300
626

5,367
2,766
49,935

579,519
$__229.307

2004

$ 500,000
75,666
14.117

589.783

4,155
4,000
1,156
91,836
8,802
81,785

2,300
1,321
12,526
32,897
31,500
3,174
223,820
5,392
1,526
3,418
38,781

548.389
$__ 41394



THE NATIONAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS REGULATORY COMMISSION

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Excess of support over expenditure for the year
Add/(deduct): charges to income not involving cash
Depreciation

Net change in non-cash working capital
balances related to operations™

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Additions to capital assets
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

*Consisting of changes in:
Licence fees payable
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Gratuity payable

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these statements.

005 004
$ 229,307 $ 41,394
14,158 8.802
243,465 50,196
54,552 (6.587)
298,017 43.609
(82,352) (40.,158)
(82.352) (40.158)
215,665 3,451
122.520 119,069
$_ 338,185 $__122.520
$ 1475 (2,393)
(2,379) (9,000)
28,998 (25,979)
26.458 - 30.785
$__ 54,552 $__ (6,587



THE NATIONAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS REGULATORY COMMISSION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@

®)

©)

@

Status

The National Telecommunications Regulatory Commission was established by the
Telecommunications Act No. 27 of 2000 on the 22nd November 2000. The Commission
commenced operations on March 18, 2002.

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Commission is to execute the functions defined in Section 12 of
the Telecommunications Act No. 27 of 2000 in the regulation of Telecommunications in Saint
Lucia.

Basis of Accounting

These financial statements are prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, and in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are stated at cost and are depreciated on a straight line basis at the following
rates:

Furniture and Equipment 15% - 25%
2. CAPITAL ASSETS
Furniture &Equipment
005 004
COST
Balance at beginning of year $ 76,063 § 35905
Additions 82,352 40,158
Balance at end of year 158.415 76.063
DEPRECIATION
Balance at beginning of year $ 19339 §$ 10,537
Depreciation for the year 14,158 8.802
Balance at end of year 33.497 19.339
Book Value end of year $_124918 $__ 56,724
3. LICENCE FEES PAYABLE

This amount represents Licence fees received on behalf of and payable to the Government of
St.Lucia.



THE NATIONAL TELECOMMUNICATIONS REGULATORY COMMISSION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2005

4. CONTRIBUTED FUNDS

These funds have been provided by the Government of St.Lucia as a contribution towards the
purchase of Assets for the Commission. The funds are being amortized over a period of five years
commencing 2003.

5. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Where changes have been made in the presentation of the current year's figures, comparative
amounts have been restated.
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APPENDIX C

MOBILE CELLUIAR POST-PAID RATES & PACKAGES

Cable & Wireless Caribbean Cellular (St. Lucia) Limited

Plan Digital 40 | Digital 150 | Digital 350 | Digital 500
Monthly Plan (EC$) $ 57 $ 115 $ 210 $ 285
Minutes included per 40 150 350 500
month

Peak Outbound per minute $0.79 $0.79 $0.79 $0.79
(EC9)

Off Peak Outbound per $ 0.59 $ 0.59 $ 0.59 $0.59
minute (EC$)

Incoming per minute (ECS$) Free Free Free Free

NB: Off-Peak rates apply to evening rates between 6:00 p.n. and 8:00 a.m. weekdays; weekend calls from
Midnight Friday to 8:00 a.m. Monday; and Public Holidays. Peak rates apply to all other times

Digicel (St. Lucia) Limited

- DigiSELECT | DigiSELECT | DigiSELECT | DigiSELECT
80 180 300 600
Monthly Plan (EC$) $48 $99 $150 $285
Free Minutes per month 80 180 300 600
Rates to Own Mobile
- Day (EC$) $0.70 $0.65 $0.60 $0.55
- Evening (EC$) $0.55 $ 0.55 $0.55 $0.55
- Weekend (EC$) $ 0.50 $0.50 $ 0.50 $0.50
Rates to Fixed line & Other Mobile
- Day (EC$) $0.80 $0.75 $0.70 $0.65
- Evening (EC$) $0.65 $0.65 $0.65 $0.65
- Weekend (EC$) $ 0.60 $0.60 $0.60 $ 0.60
Incoming per minute(ECS) Free Free Free Free
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Wireless Ventures (St. Lucia) Limited

APPENDIX C

Plan Plan 80 | Plan 125 | Plan 250 | Plan 450 | Plan 600
Monthly Plan (EC$) $50 $75 $125 $ 200 $300
Free Minutes per month 80 120 250 450 800
Outgoing Calls (7am to 6:59pm, Mon-Fri)

- To WV Mobiles (EC$) $0.70 $0.65 $0.60 $0.55 $0.50
- To Fixed Line (EC$) $0.80 $0.75 $0.70 $0.65 $0.60
- To Other Mobiles (EC$) $0.90 $0.85 $0.80 $0.75 $0.70
Nights & Weekends (7pm to 6:59am, Mon-Fri, all hours Sat & Sun)

- To WV Mobiles (EC$) $0.50 $0.55 $0.50 $0.50 $0.40
- To Fixed Line (EC$) $0.60 $0.65 $0.60 $0.60 $0.50
- T'o Other Mobiles (EC$) $0.70 $0.75 $0.70 $0.70 $0.40
Incoming per minute (ECS$) Free Free Free Free
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APPENDIX D

2004/5 WORK PI.AN SCHEDULE

PROJECT & GENERAL TASKS " *

Lo

Licensing of Telecommunications Users &

Service Providets

e Complete outstanding licence templates and
other evidence of registration

e  Establish linkages and procedutes to manage
non-compliance to the Act

e Begin re-licensing exetcise

In process

Draft templates have been completed. Will be forwarded
to ECTEL for no-objection approval. Linkages with
agencies such as the Police critical in order to establish

enforcement and compliance measures

Office Procedures

e Identify contractor and finalise contract
e Contractor prepare draft Manual

e Commission review and approves draft
Manual
e Manual finalised and published

In process

Possible contractor identified. Terms of Reference being
negotiated. Critical to the success of this initiative is the
development of administrative procedures to support
processes outlined in the Sector Procedures Mannal.

Possible constraint to this activity might be funding.

Sector Procedures Manual In process

* Consul.tar.lt prepates draft Manual Drafls are being reviewed and revised. It is hoped that
* Commission reviews draft public consultation process can begin before the end of
¢ Comments from ECTEL 2004. with the Mamual finalised within th J
e  Draft revised for Public Consultations e & Mlamace jeniicns wetr 4 o
e DPublic Consultation guarter of 2005.

e DPublication of approved Manual

Public Education In process

e  Ovethaul website

e Identify and select other public education
medium, if necessaty
e DPrepare material, if necessary

Work on website underway. Publication of a newspaper
column has been cancelled until further notice due to the
excistence of column published by ECTEL in the
Weekend Voice Newspaper. Publication of a newsletter
is being investigated, which could be a vehicle for

publication of assessments and surveys.

Amateur Radio Operations

e Re-license existing amateur radio operators
e Develop draft framework for amateur radio

To begin

Re-licensing activity has been given priority. Technical




APPENDIX D

PROJECT & GENERAL TASKS

STATUS & COMMENTS

operations in St. Lucia

e  Consult with amateur radio community on
draft framework

e TFinalise draft framework

e Arrange for licensing of new amateur radio
operators

expertise is being sourced for development of framework.

Establishing Effective Liaisons

e  Ministry of Communications, Wotks,
Transport & Public Utilities

Inland Revenue Department

Customs & Excise Depatrtment

Police Force

St. Lucia Bureau of Standards

National Emergency Management Office
St. Lucia Air & Sea Potts Authority

In process

Discussions have begun with some agencies.

Spectrum Monitoring

Start monitoring exetcise
Revise database

e Determine and execute follow-up action to
be taken for identified breaches

To begin

Start date will be dependent on arrangements for spectrum

monitoring vehicle being finalised.

Assessments & Surveys

e Identify performance indicators for NTRC

e Identify performance indicators for licensees

e Identify performance indicators and target
groups among the public

e Determine frequency of assessment and
methods of administering surveys

e Implement approved assessment processes

In process

Possible performance indicators have been identified.
Methods of administration are being finalised. Proposal
being prepared for approval before implementation.










